
Licensing Sub-Committee

Date: Monday, 24th September, 2018
Time: 3.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Les Kew, Rob Appleyard and Deirdre Horstmann

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

A briefing session for Members will be held at 9.30am in the room where the meeting is to take 
place.

Sean O'Neill
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 395090
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic 
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and 
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above. 

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording 
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please 
make yourself known to the camera operators. 

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians 
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera 
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its 
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a 
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days 
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be 
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the 
scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated 
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


Licensing Sub-Committee - Monday, 24th September, 2018

at 3.00 pm in the Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

A G E N D A

1.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 
Note 5 on the previous page.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 16 AUGUST 2018 (Pages 7 - 20)

6.  LICENSING PROCEDURE (Pages 21 - 24)

The Chair will, if required, explain the licensing procedure.

7.  APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR TIVOLI, 6-8 DORCHESTER 
STREET, SOUTHGATE CENTRE, BATH BA1 1SS (Pages 25 - 60)

8.  APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE LUNA CINEMA LIMITED, 
BATH ROYAL CRESCENT LOWER LAWN, MARLBOROUGH LANE, BATH BA1 2NQ 



(Pages 61 - 122)

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on 
01225 395090.



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Page 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Thursday, 16th August, 2018, 10.00 am

Councillors: Les Kew (Chair), Rob Appleyard and Deirdre Horstmann 
Officers in attendance: Carrie-Ann Evans (Deputy Team Leader (Barrister)) and John 
Dowding (Senior Public Protection Officer)

13   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer advised those present of the procedure.

14   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

There were none.

15   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

16   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

There was none.

17   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

18   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The Sub-Committee having been satisfied that the public interest would be better 
served by not disclosing relevant information, RESOLVED in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the public 
should be excluded from the remainder of the meeting and that the reporting of the 
following items of business be prevented under Section 100A(5A), because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.”   

19   TAXI PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for agenda items 8-13.

20   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER - 1600763TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 13

Members noted that the licensee had not responded to letters sent in January and 
June 2018 to his last known address as part of the three-yearly Enhanced Disclosure 
and Barring Service check and that no communication had been received from him 
up to the date of the meeting. Therefore it was not possible to establish that the 
licensee remained a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney 
Carriage Driver’s Licence.  He had also failed to comply with the reasonable 
requests of a delegated officer.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy. 

Preliminary Issue
The licensee did not attend and the committee had no explanation as to why he had 
not attended. Members were satisfied that notice of the hearing and report pack had 
been sent to the licensee at his last known address. Members were satisfied that the 
licensee had been sent letters in January and June informing him of the 
requirements of the DBS Check and warning him that failure to comply would result 
in a referral to the committee. The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he 
had received no contact from the licensee in relation to the DBS Check or committee 
hearing. Having considered this information  and weighed it in the balance, Members 
were satisfied that it was in the interests of public protection to proceed to determine 
this matter, the licensee having been given adequate warning of the potential 
consequences and referral to Licensing Sub-Committee.

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations. 
Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing him that the DBS check was due and that he needed to make 
an appointment for that purpose by 31 March 2018. No response was 
received from the licensee. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 enclosing a copy of the letter dated January 2018 and 

Page 6



Page 3 of 13

noting that he had not made contact to arrange the necessary DBS 
Check. He was asked to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 days 
of the date of the letter to avoid formal action. He was made aware that 
there would be no further reminders and failure to make contact would 
result in a referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

iv. The licensee had failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letters. 

v. The Licensee had failed to attend the LSC hearing today and there was 
no information regarding his non-attendance. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continues to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons indicated above and in 
the absence of a satisfactory DBS check Members could no longer be satisfied that 
the licensee continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolved to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 
61(1)(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect. 

21   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/00987/TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Members noted that a letter had been sent to the licensee in January 2018 as part of 
the three-yearly Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service  check. The licensee 
attended the licensing office on 28th March 2018 and completed the necessary DBS 
forms. At this time it was explained to the licensee that the DBS form would be sent 
to him and that he was then required to present it at the licensing office. The licensee 
signed a document confirming that he had understood that he must present the DBS 
certificate at the licensing office and was made fully aware of the implications of 
failing to do so. The DBS tracking service confirmed that a valid DBS certificate was 
sent to the licensee on 20th April 2018. A reminder letter was sent to the licensee on 
12 June 2018. At the date of the meeting no reply had been received from the 
licensee and no DBS certification had been produced.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 

Page 7



Page 4 of 13

having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.

Preliminary issue 
The licensee did not attend and the committee had no explanation as to why he had 
not attended. Members were satisfied that notice of the hearing and reports pack 
had been sent to the licensee at his last known address. Members were satisfied 
that the licensee knew that it was his responsibility to provide the DBS Certificate to 
the Taxi Licensing team having confirmed in writing the same on 28 March 2018 and 
that he been reminded by letter in June of the requirements of the DBS Check and 
warning him that failure to comply would result in a referral to the Committee. The 
Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he had received no contact from the 
licensee to provide his DBS certificate or in relation to committee hearing. Having 
considered this information and weighed it in the balance, Members were satisfied 
that it was in the interests of public protection to proceed to determine this matter, 
the licensee having been given adequate warning of the potential consequences and 
referral to LSC.

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations. 

Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing him that the DBS check was due.

iii. On 28 March 2018 the licensee attended the Taxi Licensing team’s 
office and completed the necessary DBS forms. The licensee signed a 
BANES DBS Check document to record his understanding that: 

a. it was his responsibility to produce the DBS certificate to the 
Taxi Licensing team’s office at the earliest opportunity; and

b. that failure to do so would result in his licence being referred to 
the LSC and that his licence might be suspended or revoked; 
and

c. if, at the time of the LSC meeting more than 2 months had 
elapsed since the original certificate was produced then his 
licence might be suspended until a new DBS certificate had 
been obtained at his expense.

iv. The DBS Tracking service web portal confirmed that a valid DBS 
certificate was sent to the licensee on 20 April 2018.

v. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 reminding him that it was his responsibility to provide a copy 
of the DBS certificate. He was given 7 days from receipt of the letter to 

Page 8



Page 5 of 13

provide a copy of the certificate. He was warned that a failure to do so 
would result in a referral of his licence to the LSC to consider 
suspension or revocation of his licence. 

vi. The licensee has failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letter. 

vii. The licensee has failed to attend the LSC hearing today and there was 
no information regarding his non-attendance. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continues to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons indicated above and in 
the absence of a satisfactory DBS check Members could no longer be satisfied that 
the licensee continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolved to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 
61(1)(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

22   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/01060/TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in her 
absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Members noted that the licensee had not responded to letters sent in January and 
June 2018 to her last known address as part of the three-yearly Enhanced 
Disclosure and Barring Service check and that no communication had been received 
from her up to the date of the meeting. Therefore it was not possible to establish that 
the licensee remained a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private 
Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence. She had also failed to comply with the 
reasonable requests of a delegated officer.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of her Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.

Preliminary issue
The licensee did not attend and the committee had no explanation as to why she had 
not attended. Members were satisfied that notice of the hearing and reports pack 

Page 9



Page 6 of 13

had been sent to the licensee at her last known address. Members were satisfied 
that the licensee had been sent letters in January and June informing her of the 
requirements of the DBS Check and warning her that failure to comply would result 
in a referral to the Committee. The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he 
had received no contact from the licensee in relation to the DBS Check or committee 
hearing. Having considered this information and weighed it in the balance, Members 
were satisfied that it was in the interests of public protection to proceed to determine 
this matter, the licensee having been given adequate warning of the potential 
consequences and referral to LSC.

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations.
 
Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to her last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing her that the DBS check was due and that she needed to 
make an appointment for that purpose by 31 March 2018. No response 
was received from the licensee. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 enclosing a copy of the letter dated January 2018 and 
noting that she had not made contact to arrange the necessary DBS 
Check. She was asked to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 
days of the date of the letter to avoid formal action. She was made 
aware that there would be no further reminders and failure to make 
contact would result in a referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

iv. The licensee had failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letters. 

v. The licensee had failed to attend the LSC hearing today and there was 
no information regarding her non-attendance. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continued to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons indicated above and in 
the absence of the DBS Certificate Members could not be satisfied that the licensee 
continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolved to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 
61(1)(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

23   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 

Page 10



Page 7 of 13

REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/00890/TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Members noted that the licensee had not responded to letters sent in January and 
June 2018 to his last known address as part of the three-yearly Enhanced Disclosure 
and Barring Service check and that no communication had been received from him 
up to the date of the meeting. A copy of the agenda report for today’s hearing sent to 
him had been returned marked “not known at this address”. Therefore it was not 
possible to establish that the licensee remained a fit and proper person to hold a 
combined Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence. He had also failed to 
comply with the reasonable requests of a delegated officer.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.
 
Preliminary issue
The licensee did not attend but the Senior Public Protection Officer had received the 
letter containing notice of hearing and reports pack returned and marked “not known 
at this address please amend your records”. Members were satisfied that the 
licensee had been sent letters in January and June informing him of the 
requirements of the DBS Check and warning him that failure to comply would result 
in a referral to the Committee and the Senior Public Protection Officer indicated that 
these had not been returned saying “not known at this address” as far as he was 
aware. The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he had received no 
contact from the licensee in relation to the DBS Check. Having considered this 
information and weighed it in the balance, Members were satisfied that it was in the 
interests of public protection to proceed to determine this matter, the licensee having 
been given adequate warning of the potential consequences of failing to comply with 
the requirement of a DBS check and it being his responsibility under the conditions 
of his licence to notify the licensing office of any change of address.

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations. 

Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

Page 11



Page 8 of 13

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing him that the DBS check was due and that he needed to make 
an appointment for that purpose by 31 March 2018. No response was 
received from the licensee and as far as the Senior Public Protection 
Officer was aware this letter had not been returned by the postal 
service as undeliverable. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 enclosing a copy of the letter dated January 2018 and 
noting that he had not made contact to arrange the necessary DBS 
Check. He was asked to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 days 
of the date of the letter to avoid formal action. He was made aware that 
there would be no further reminders and failure to make contact would 
result in a referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee. As far as the 
Senior public Protection Officer was aware this letter had not been 
returned by the postal service as undeliverable. 

iv. The licensee had failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letters. 

v. The licensee had failed to attend the LSC hearing today and the notice 
of hearing and reports pack had been returned marked “not known at 
this address, please amend your records” however, this was sent to the 
last known address on the Licensing teams’ records and it is the 
licensee’s responsibility under the conditions of his licence to notify the 
licensing team of any change of address for the purposes of important 
correspondence relating to his licence. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continued to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons and the absence of the 
DBS Certificate Members could not be satisfied that the licensee continued to be fit 
and proper.

Accordingly members resolve to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 61(1)(b) 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

24   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/01064/TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Members noted that the licensee had not responded to letters sent in January and 
June 2018 to his last known address as part of the three-yearly Enhanced Disclosure 

Page 12



Page 9 of 13

and Barring Service  check and that no communication had been received from him 
up to the date of the meeting. Therefore it was not possible to establish that the 
licensee remained a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney 
Carriage Driver’s Licence. He had also failed to comply with the reasonable requests 
of a delegated officer.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.
 
Preliminary issue
The licensee did not attend and the committee had no explanation as to why he had 
not attended. Members were satisfied that notice of the hearing and reports pack 
had been sent to the licensee at his last known address. Members were satisfied 
that the licensee had been sent letters in January and June informing him of the 
requirements of the DBS Check and warning him that failure to comply would result 
in a referral to the Committee. The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he 
had received no contact from the licensee in relation to the DBS Check or committee 
hearing. Having considered this information  and weighed it in the balance, Members 
were satisfied that it was in the interests of public protection to proceed to determine 
this matter, the licensee having been given adequate warning of the potential 
consequences and referral to Licensing Sub-Committee.

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations. 

Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing him that the DBS check was due and that he needed to make 
an appointment for that purpose by 31 March 2018. No response was 
received from the licensee. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 enclosing a copy of the letter dated January 2018 and 
noting that he had not made contact to arrange the necessary DBS 
Check. He was asked to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 days 

Page 13



Page 10 of 13

of the date of the letter to avoid formal action. He was made aware that 
there would be no further reminders and failure to make contact would 
result in a referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

iv. The licensee has failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letters. 

v. The licensee has failed to attend the LSC hearing today and there was 
no information regarding his non-attendance. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continued to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons indicated above and the 
absence of the DBS Certificate Members could not be satisfied that the licensee 
continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolve to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 61(1)(b) 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

24   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/01064/TAXI 

The licensee did not attend the hearing or communicate any explanation for non-
attendance. The Sub-Committee decided to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report.

Members noted that the licensee had not responded to letters sent in January and 
June 2018 to his last known address as part of the three-yearly Enhanced Barring 
and Disclosure check and that no communication had been received from him up to 
the date of the meeting. Therefore it was not possible to establish that the licensee 
remained a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence. He had also breached a licence condition by failure to comply with 
the reasonable requests of a delegated officer.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to revoke the licensee’s 
Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.
 
The licensee did not attend and the committee had no explanation as to why he had 
not attended. Members were satisfied that notice of the hearing and reports pack 
had been sent to the licensee at his last known address. Members were satisfied 
that the licensee had been sent letters in January and June informing him of the 

Page 14



Page 11 of 13

requirements of the DBS Check and warning him that failure to comply would result 
in a referral to the Committee. The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed that he 
had received no contact from the licensee in relation to the DBS Check or committee 
hearing. Having considered this information  and weighed it in the balance, Members 
were satisfied that it was in the interests of public protection to proceed to determine 
this matter, the licensee having been given adequate warning of the potential 
consequences and referral to Licensing Sub-Committee.
Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes. The licensee had not made any representations in writing and had not 
attended the hearing in person to make oral representations. 

Members noted:

i. That the licensee’s licence had been issued on 1 March 2016 subject 
to “a satisfactory DBS Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 by the Taxi Licensing team 
informing him that the DBS check was due and that he needed to make 
an appointment for that purposes by 31 March 2018. No response was 
received from the licensee. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter by the Taxi Licensing team on 12 
June 2018 enclosing a copy of the letter dated January 2018 and 
noting that he had not made contact to arrange the necessary DBS 
Check. He was asked to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 days 
of the date of the letter to avoid formal action. He was made aware that 
there would be no further reminders and failure to make contact would 
result in a referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

iv. The licensee has failed to make contact with the Taxi Licensing team 
following the above-mentioned letters. 

v. The licensee has failed to attend the LSC hearing today and there was 
no information regarding his non-attendance. 

Applying their policy Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in 
determining whether or not a licensee continued to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence and in the light of the circumstances and reasons indicated above and the 
absence of the DBS Certificate Members could not be satisfied that the licensee 
continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolve to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 61(1)(b) 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

25   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE & FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER – 16/00286/TAXI 

Page 15



Page 12 of 13

The licensee confirmed that he understood the procedure to be followed for the 
hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report. Members noted that the 
licensee had not responded to letters sent to him in January and July 2018 as part of 
the three-yearly Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service check of licence holders. 
He had, however, sent an email to the Licensing office shortly before the hearing 
accepting responsibility for not replying to the letters through an oversight. The 
Senior Public Protection Officer advised the Sub-Committee that there had been no 
complaints against the licensee.

The licensee stated his case. He said that he had missed the letters and that this 
had been his fault. He stated that he had not yet been issued with a DBS certificate, 
because he had not been able to log into the DBS online system. The DBS had 
informed him that they did not hold a registration number for him. The Senior Public 
Protection Officer said that he was satisfied that the licensee was in the process of 
obtaining a DBS certificate. In response to a question from the Chair the licensee 
stated that the DBS, when issued, would not disclose any motoring offences, 
convictions or cautions. In his closing statement he reiterated that it had been 
entirely his fault that he failed to respond to the letters of January and June.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the licensee 
continued to be a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney 
Carriage Driver’s Licence, but gave him a formal warning about his conduct, as 
detailed below.

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of his Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate and 
failed to comply with a reasonable request of an officer with delegated authority. In 
doing so they had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy. 

Members took into account the contents of the report before them together with 
annexes and balanced these against the licensee’s written submissions and oral 
representations. 

The licensee took full responsibility for failing to deal with this correspondence but 
could not explain how he missed it. He indicated to members that he has a clean 
driving licence and police record with no cautions, convictions or driving offences. He 
also confirmed that he had his DBS subscription in place.

The Senior Public Protection Officer confirmed when asked by Members, that there 
had been no complaints against the licensee since he was first licensed in 2014.

Members noted that the DBS Check is an important tool in determining whether or 
not a licensee continues to be a fit and proper person to hold a licence however they 
were satisfied based the information before them, including the licensee’s oral 
representations and confirmation from the Senior Public Protection officer that there 
had been no complaints against the licensee, that on balance, he remained a fit and 

Page 16



Page 13 of 13

proper person to hold a licence. That said, the licensee had behaved in a way which 
was disappointing having not managed his affairs with sufficient professionalism and 
care; and having failed to comply with reasonable requests of a Senior Public 
Protection Officer and in the light of that, Members resolved to issue the licensee 
with a formal warning as to this conduct.

Members noted that the licensee must be subject to a satisfactory DBS check and 
should he fail to co-operate with the Senior Public Protection Officer in this regard it 
was highly likely that he would be brought back before the Committee. Members 
would likely take a very dim view of his further attendance before them in those 
circumstances or in relation to his conduct generally.

Accordingly members resolved to issue the licensee with a formal warning that this is 
not the conduct expected of a BANES licensed Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver.

The meeting ended at 11.39 am

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
LICENSING ACT 2003

 PROCEDURE FOR NEW APPLICATIONS AND VARIATIONS

The parties will be allowed an equal maximum period of time not normally exceeding 
twenty minutes. Where more than one party make representations the time should 
be split equally between them. Where several parties make similar representations 
one representative should be appointed avoiding duplication and making the best 
use of the available time

Other Parties’ case(s)
(May call witnesses)

Questions to Other Parties by other parties 
and Members

Responsible Authorities’ case

Questions to Responsible Authorities by 
other parties and Members

Other Parties sum up
Applicant sums up

Adjournment

Reconvene and announce decision with 
reasons

Introductions by Chair

Have parties received and understood 
Licensing Procedure?

Summary/update by Licensing Officer

Applicant /representative presents case
(May call witnesses)

Questions to Applicant by other parties and 
Members

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



E:\moderngov\data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\6\AI00022604\$ivpjgpx2.rtf

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
LICENSING ACT 2003

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING AN APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE OR FOR A VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE

The Chair will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to make 
representations that will not normally exceed twenty minutes.  Where more than 
one party makes relevant representations this time will be split between the parties 
and where several parties make similar representations it is suggested one 
representative is appointed to avoid duplication. 

The term “party” or “parties” will mean anyone to whom notice of this meeting has 
been given.

1. The Chair will introduce Members of the Sub-Committee, the Officers present 
and explain the procedure to be followed.

2. The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by 
the Sub-Committee.

3. (i) The Applicant/Licence Holder , or representative, addresses the Sub-
Committee who may be asked relevant questions by the other parties and 
Members.
(ii) witnesses may be called in support of the application who may be asked 
relevant questions by the other parties and Members.

4. (i) Any party making relevant representations,  or representative, will address 
the Sub-Committee who may be asked relevant questions by the Applicant, 
other parties and Members.
(ii) witnesses may be called in support of such representations who may be 
asked relevant questions by the Applicant, other parties and Members.

5. Responsible Authorities making representation will address the Committee and 
may be asked relevant questions by the Applicant, other parties and Members.

6. The other parties will be invited in turn to summarise their representations.

Responsible Authorities will be invited to summarise their representations

The Applicant/ Licence Holder will be invited to summarise the application.

8. The Chair will invite the Committee to move into private session to enable the 
Members to deliberate in private. The Committee will reconvene publicly if 
clarification of evidence is required and/or legal advice is required. The 
Committee may retire to a private room, or alternatively require vacation of the 
room by all other persons.

Whilst in deliberation the Committee will be accompanied by Legal and 
Democratic Service Officers for the purpose of assisting them in drafting their 
reasoning for the decision.

The Committee will reconvene the meeting and the Chair will announce the 
Committee’s decision with reasons and advise that the decision will be released 
in writing within the statutory time limits or advise that the decision will be 

Page 21



E:\moderngov\data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\6\AI00022604\$ivpjgpx2.rtf

released in writing with reasons within the statutory time limit, in this instance, 5 
working days.

PLEASE NOTE:

 Where the Sub-Committee considers it necessary to do so, it may vary this 
procedure.

 In circumstances where a party fails to attend the Committee will consider 
whether to proceed in absence. Should a matter be deferred the deferral 
notice will state that the matter may proceed in a party’s absence on the next 
occasion. In deciding whether to proceed all notices, communications and 
representations will be considered.

 Only in exceptional circumstances will the Committee take into account any 
additional late documentary or other information produced by an existing party 
in support of their application/representation.  This will be at the discretion of 
the Chair and with the agreement of all the other parties.  No new 
representations will be allowed at the hearing.

 The hearing will take the form of a discussion and parties will be able to ask 
questions as set out above. However, formal cross examination will be 
discouraged.

 The Authority will disregard any information or representation given by a party 
which is not relevant to the Application and the Licensing Act 2003.

  Where there is more than one party making relevant representations the time 
allocated will be split between those parties.

 Where several parties are making the same or similar representations it is 
suggested that one representative is appointed to avoid duplication and make 
efficient use of the allocated time. 

 Where an objection is made by an association or residents group, a duly 
authorised person – as notified to the Licensing Authority – may speak on 
behalf of that association or group. 

 The Chair may request that persons behaving in a disruptive manner should 
leave the hearing and their return refused, or allowed subject to conditions.  
An excluded person is however, entitled to submit the information they would 
have been entitled to present had they not been excluded.

Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 
honest, accountable and transparent fashion. On occasion however, it may be 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public pursuant to the Local 
Government Act 1972 Schedule 12 (a). In those circumstances reasons for such 
decisions will be given.

Page 22



Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 16 AUGUST 2018
	6 LICENSING PROCEDURE
	Licensing act new or var procedure

	7 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR TIVOLI, 6-8 DORCHESTER STREET, SOUTHGATE CENTRE, BATH BA1 1SS
	8 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE LUNA CINEMA LIMITED, BATH ROYAL CRESCENT LOWER LAWN, MARLBOROUGH LANE, BATH BA1 2NQ

